POLICE COMMITTEE

Thursday, 3 November 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Police Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at
1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Deputy Douglas Barrow (Chairman) Alderman Alison Gowman
Nicholas Bensted-Smith Alderman lan Luder

Mark Boleat Lucy Sandford

Simon Duckworth

Officers:

Bob Roberts - Director of Communications
Christopher Braithwaite - Town Clerk's Department

Alex Orme - Town Clerk's Department

Craig Spencer - Town Clerk's Department

Peter Kane - Chamberlain

Connie Dale - Chamberlain's Department

lan Dyson - Commissioner, City of London Police
Commander Chris Greany - City of London Police

Teresa La Thangue - City of London Police

Hayley Williams - City of London Police

Commander Richard Woolford - City of London Police

Richard Jeffrey - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department
Peter Young - City Surveyor's Department

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Deputy Henry Pollard, Christopher Hayward,
Helen Marshall, Deputy Richard Regan and Deputy James Thomson.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES
3.1 Police Committee - 22 September 2016
The Town Clerk advised the Committee that prior to the meeting, the Chairman
had requested that some amendments be made to the minutes. Therefore, the

Town Clerk had circulated a revised version of the minutes around the table,
with the amendments proposed by the Chairman highlighted.



RESOLVED - That the public minutes of the meeting held on 22 September
2016 be approved as a correct record, subject to the following amendments:

- Agenda ltem 7.2
Addition to the end of the item of “A Member noted the reference to
brothels and queried whether this was an emerging issue. The Member
also queried whether work to address this issue was being co-ordinated
with the Safer City Partnership.”

- Agendaltem 7.3
Addition to the end of the first paragraph of “A Member asked for specific
clarification regarding the resources which were being used to enforce the
20 miles per hour limit, as the statistics provided were insufficient in
isolation to allow Members to understand the demands of enforcing the
limit.”

Addition to the end of the item of “A Member requested that invitations to
the Community Speedwatch Event be circulated to all Members of the
Committee.”

- Agenda Item 10
Addition to the end of the item of “The Chairman requested that he be
provided with a clear definition of “overnight” to allow Members to clear
information of how many children were detained overnight.”

3.2 Performance & Resource Management Sub-Committee - 7
September 2016

RESOLVED - That the public minutes of the meeting held on 7 September
2016 be noted.

3.3 Police Professional Standards & Integrity Sub-Committee - 23
September 2016

RESOLVED - That the public minutes of the meeting held on 23 September
2016 be noted.

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that prior to the meeting, the Chairman
had requested that some additions be made to the Outstanding References
report, as the report circulated with the agenda did not include all of the actions
from the previous meeting. Therefore, the Town Clerk had circulated a revised
version of the Outstanding References report around the table, with the
amendments proposed by the Chairman highlighted. The Town Clerk advised
that each of the additional items included within the revised Outstanding
References document was addressed within a Briefing Note, which had been
circulated to Members by email earlier in the week and copies of which had
been put around the table.



Barbican CCTV

A Member commented that he had been unable to attend the last meeting, but
met with the Commissioner prior to the meeting to discuss the Barbican CCTV
report. He explained that he had commented to the Commissioner that the
crime statistics for the Barbican Estate had been calculated during a period
when there had been no access to Podium level, which would have an impact
on the statistics. The Member explained that he had noted that the opening of
Crossrail may also have an impact on the statistics.

The Member therefore requested that the statistics be reviewed once access to
the Podium had been restored and, also, when the Crossrail station had
opened. The Commissioner agreed that these reviews could be undertaken.

Police Pensions Sub-Committee

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that, in addition to the Chairman, two
Scheme Manager representatives to the Police Pensions Sub-Committee had
been identified (Alex Deane as a Common Council representative and Helen
Isaacs as an employer representative) as had two Scheme Member
representatives (Davina Plummer and Kieran Sharp).

A potential third Scheme Member representative, to complete the Sub-
Committee, had been identified. However, the Chairman of the Sub-Committee
explained that the representative had been unwilling to commit to the training
requirements of the role.

Members queried whether it would be possible to hold the first meeting of the
Sub-Committee with only two Scheme Member representatives appointed. The
Town Clerk explained that the legislation required that the Sub-Committee
comprise an equal number of Scheme Manager and Scheme Member
representatives, so it would not be advisable to meet without all representatives
being appointed.

Members discussed the appointment of the third Scheme Member
representative and agreed that the Town Clerk should write to the potential
representative to advise him of the need to comply with the training
requirements of the role. The Committee agreed that if the representative
agreed to the requirements, he should be appointed.

Community Engagement Review

The Commissioner advised that the Community Engagement Review had been
embedded into the One Safe City programme, which would ensure that
appropriate  community safety communication was conducted by both the
Police and the Corporation. The Commissioner confirmed that a written report
regarding progress in this area could be submitted to the Committee in January
2017.

RESOLVED - That the various Outstanding Reference and the updates
provided thereon be noted.



POLICING THE CITY BRIDGES - BUSINESS REQUIREMENT

The Committee considered a report of the Commissioner setting out
information concerning the demand for and cost of providing policing services
to the five vehicular and pedestrian bridges crossing the River Thames in the
City of London.

Members noted that Bridge House Estates was a charity responsible for the
upkeep of the Bridges and, therefore, if funding was being sought from this
source, it was vital that it was within the Charitable Objects of the charity.

Members discussed the proposals for additional funding from Bridge House
Estates and agreed that the additional funding for Counter Terrorism
deployments on the Bridges and for patrol and response to calls on the Bridges
were likely to be within the Charitable Objects of Bridge House Estates.

However, Members agreed that the additional funding for a Marine Support Unit
Constable was not likely to be considered to be within the Charitable Objects
and therefore agreed that this funding should be removed from the funding
request to Bridge House Estates.

Members noted that, given that the additional funding was related to staff costs,
the funding should be increase in future years in line with pay increases.

RESOLVED - That:
a) the report be noted; and
b) that approval be given to a formal approach being made to the Bridge
House Estate for annual funding of £214,000, to cover the cost of
policing services on the five City Bridges, with increases in future years
to account for pay increases.

DRAFT CORPORATE COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner which set out a draft
overarching Communication Strategy, designed to facilitate a more coordinated
approach to Corporate Communication.

The Commissioner explained that the Strategy was currently in draft and had
not yet been fully discussed by the Force. He explained that any comments
received by Members would be fed into the updated version of the Strategy
which would be developed.

The Chairman commented that he would hope that the final Communications
Plan would cover a period of three to five years, while the draft currently
covered up to two years. He also commented that the Plan should include more
information regarding efforts to receive communications, rather than focusing
solely on transmission of messages.

A Member commented that it would be important to include information
regarding the cost to implement the measures set out within the Plan. The
Commissioner explained that the plan was still in development, and costs to



implement would be considered once development of the plan had been
completed.

A Member requested that an update be given to Members regarding the
provision of the messaging platform. The Commissioner agreed to circulate a
note to Members to provide an update regarding this.

RESOLVED - That the Committee notes the report.

HMIC RECOMMENDATIONS- STOP AND SEARCH POWERS 2 UPDATE
The Committee received a report of the Commissioner providing an update on
progress made in implementing recommendations made by Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary in the wake of a report in to the use of Stop and
Search powers, published in September 2015.

The Commissioner explained that this was the first report to the Committee on
the use of Stop and Search Powers and asked for guidance regarding how
frequently the Committee would wish to receive these reports. The Committee
agreed that six-monthly updates would be appropriate.

RESOLVED - That the report be received and its content noted.

2016/17 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
SEPTEMBER 2016

The Committee considered a joint report of the Chamberlain and the
Commissioner which provided information on the budget position for the Police
to end of September 2016. The report advised of an overall increase in the
latest budget position of £1.2m above that which had been budgeted for.

The Commissioner explained that one of the budget variances were a reduction
in income from the Economic Crime Academy. However, he explained that the
Academy was still projected to cover its costs for the year. In addition, it was
anticipated that the work currently being undertaken by the Academy would
result in an increased income stream, so it would be possible to account for the
lost income this year with increased income over the next three years.

The Chamberlain explained that the revised budget position would require a
draw down from the Police General Reserve, which would leave the balance at
£2.9m as at March 2016. The Chamberlain explained that the policy adopted by
the Court of Common Council was that any draw down which reduced the
balance of the Reserve to less than £4m would require approval of the Court.
Therefore, a report would be submitted to the Committee in December 2016
regarding the budget position.

The Chairman explained that he and the Chairman of the Finance Committee
had regular meetings with the Chamberlain and Commissioner to ensure that
they were kept up to date on the budget position.

A Member asked whether it was anticipated that there would be additional
income from the Business Rate Premium in 2017/18, over that which had been



10.

budgeted, due to the increase in Business Rate valuations, and, if so, how
much additional income was anticipated from the Premium. The Chamberlain
confirmed that it was anticipated that an additional £1.5m to £2m Business
Rate Premium income may be received in 2017/18. The Member therefore
requested that the Committee be provided with information regarding the
Commissioner’s plan for this additional funding, so that the Corporation and
Police could demonstrate to Ratepayers that the additional Premium income
was being used appropriately. The Commissioner agreed that this could be
provided to the Committee in January 2017.

A Member queried whether the Pension Funding Gap referred to within the
report applied to all Police Forces. The Commissioner explained that the
Funding Gap was due to the age profile and ranks at retirement for the Force,
so it would apply to different degrees for each Force. The Commissioner
agreed to circulate a note to the Committee to explain this issue.

RESOLVED - That the Committee notes the report.

UNINSURED RISK IN COLLABORATION AGREEMENTS

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning inadequate
indemnity and insurance provisions within collaboration agreements relating to
national functions for the police service.

RESOLVED - That the Committee notes the report.

SPECIAL INTEREST AREA UPDATES

Vulnerability and Safeguarding

Nick Bensted-Smith provided an update concerning the Vulnerability and
Safeguarding SIA. He advised the Committee that he would be attending the
Vulnerability Steering Group in the week following the meeting. He also
explained that the Community Scrutiny Group focusing on Stop & Search, Use
of Force and Taser use was now meeting on a quarterly basis, although
attendance from the community had been low so far.

He also explained that he had been attending meetings of the Independent
Custody Visitor Panel and the report regarding Young Persons and Children in
custody had been well received.

Public Protection

Lucy Sandford provided an update concerning the Public Protection SIA. She
reminded the Committee that it was a busy time of year for Public Protection, in
light of Bonfire Night and the Lord Mayor’s Show.

She explained that there were concerns regarding the number of qualified
Public Order Level 2 officers to provide sufficient cover. This was a voluntary
role, with no extra payment for undertaking the role. It was suggested that the
Committee may wish to consider how officers can be encouraged to take up
this role.



11.

12.

13.

Ms Sandford explained that she had attended public order training in
Gravesend the previous month and would be attending the Public Order
Working Group meeting the following day.

She also informed the Committee that a Red Flag exercise, to test the overall
command and asset coordination for a multi-seated Terrorist Firearms Attack in
the City, would be held in December 2016. Ms Sandford explained that she
would attend this event.

Other SIA updates

A Member commented that at the previous meeting it had been agreed that all
Members of the Committee should be invited to the Community Speedwatch
event on 7 December 2016. The Member queried how many Members were
attending this event. The Town Clerk explained that in addition to the event on
7 December 2016, which one Member was attending, there was now a further
event on 21 December 2016, which two Members were attending.

The Committee agreed that invitations to each of these events should be sent
to all Members of the Court of Common Council.

SIA Rota

The Town Clerk explained that the Chairman had requested that a rota of
Special Interest Area Updates be created for future meetings. The Town Clerk
advised that he would be in contact with Members to consult on the creation of
regarding this rota over the next few weeks.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

A Member asked whether any Officers could comment on Lord Harris’s report
on improving London’s preparedness for a terror attack. The Commissioner
explained that he would provide a full update on this report in the non-public
part of the agenda.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no urgent items.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Iltem No. Paragraph(s) in Schedule 12A
14-15, 17-19 3
16 4



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
14.1 Police Committee - 22 September 2016

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2016 were
approved as a correct record.

14.2 Performance & Resource Management Sub-Committee - 7
September 2016

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2016 were noted.

14.3 Police Professional Standards & Integrity Sub-Committee - 23
September 2016

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2016 were noted.

PROJECT GRIFFIN TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH MOPAC
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Commissioner
concerning a trademark licence agreement with the Mayor’s Office for Policing
and Crime relating to Project Griffin.

CITY OF LONDON POLICE CHANGE PROGRAMME
The Committee received a report of the Commissioner providing an update in
respect of the City Police’s Change Programme and Force restructuring.

COMMISSIONER'S UPDATES
The Commissioner of Police was heard concerning on-going and successful
operations undertaken by the City of London Police.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was one item of urgent business.

The meeting closed at 2.45 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Chris Braithwaite
Tel. no: 020 7332 1427
Christopher.braithwaite@cityoflondon.gov.uk



